
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF LOUISIANA

HUBERT P. VIDRINE, JR., AND §
TAMMY JOUBERT VIDRINE, §

PLAINTIFFS, §
V. § CIVIL ACTION NO. 6:07-CV-1204   

§
THE UNITED STATES, §

DEFENDANT. §

ORIGINAL COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
UNDER THE FEDERAL TORT CLAIMS ACT

 
Hubert P. Vidrine, Jr., and Tammy Joubert Vidrine, Plaintiffs, by and through their

attorneys, THE CORNWELL LAW FIRM, GOFORTH & LILLEY, and the WASHINGTON LEGAL

FOUNDATION, now come before this Court and complain of the United States Government, as

follows:

I.

JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

1. Plaintiffs are husband and wife.  They live at 1375 Hwy 178, Opelousas, Louisiana,

70570, and thus are residents of the Western District of Louisiana.

2. The claims herein are brought against the United States pursuant to  the Federal Tort

Claims Act (28 U.S.C. §2671, et seq.) and 28 U.S.C. §§1346(b)(1), for money damages

as compensation for loss of property and personal injuries that were caused by the

negligent and wrongful acts and omissions of employees of the United States

Government while acting within the scope of their offices and employment, under

circumstances where the United States, if a private person, would be liable to the

Plaintiffs in accordance with the laws of the State of Louisiana.

3. Venue is proper in that all, or a substantial part of the acts and omissions forming the

basis of these claims occurred in the Western District of Louisiana, and arose from the

filing and prosecution of unfounded charges of criminal conduct against Mr. Vidrine by

the United States Government and its agents, maliciously and without probable cause,
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in United States v. Trinity Marine Baton Rouge,Inc., et al, Western District of Louisiana

Case No. CR 99-60053.

4. Plaintiffs have fully complied with the provisions of 28 U.S.C. §2675 of the Federal Tort

Claims Act.

5. This suit has been timely filed, in that Plaintiffs timely served  notice of their claims on

both The Environmental Protection Agency and The United States Department of Justice

in September, 2005. The U.S. Department of Justice assumed responsibility for

processing the claim on behalf of both agencies, but in spite of numerous telephone calls

to the U. S. Department of Justice over the following twenty-two months requesting a

decision on Plaintiffs’ claims, no decision was ever rendered by the government.

II.

EVENTS FORMING THE BASIS OF THE CLAIMS

1. Hubert P. Vidrine, Jr. was maliciously prosecuted in United States v. Trinity Marine

Baton Rouge,Inc., et al, CR 99-60053, at the suggestion and instigation of special agents

of the Criminal Investigative Division of the United States Environmental Protection

Agency (hereinafter, “EPA-CID agents”), including but not necessarily limited to Ivan

Vikin and Keith Phillips, and upon information and belief, by unknown agents of the

Federal Bureau of Investigation.

2. Messrs. Vikin, Phillips, and agents of the FBI are “investigative or law enforcement

officers” within the meaning of 28 U.S.C. §2680(h), and thus, a claim for malicious

prosecution may be pursued against the United States.  

3. Mr. Vidrine also alleges, upon information and belief, that the malicious conduct and

false statements and allegations of the EPA-CID, and/or (upon information and belief)

FBI agents, may have been pursued by attorneys of the U.S. Department of Justice and/or

office of the United States Attorney’s Office for the Western District of Louisiana who

knew of the baseless nature of the allegations.  If subsequent discovery proves this to be

true, then the conduct of such federal prosecutors would constitute overt acts of co-

conspirators who participated in the malicious prosecution.
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4. Mr. Vidrine would be entitled to pursue these claims under the laws of the State of

Louisiana, including but not necessarily limited to claims in the nature of malicious

prosecution, assault, battery, false arrest, abuse of process, defamation, intentional

infliction of emotional distress, and conspiracy.

5. Tammy Joubert Vidrine, as the wife of Hubert P. Vidrine, Jr. would be entitled to pursue

claims under the laws of the State of Louisiana on her own behalf, including but not

necessarily limited to claims for loss of consortium, which are derivative of the claims

of Mr. Vidrine.  

6. The claims of both Mr. and Mrs. Vidrine are based upon the acts and events set forth

below, all of which actions were taken (and events were caused) by investigative and law

enforcement officers of the United States Government while acting within the scope of

their employment.

a. The conduct and actions giving rise to these claims arose from and were

based upon fabricated allegations of misconduct by Mr. Vidrine that

allegedly occurred at Canal Refining Company in or about August and

September, 1996.  Mr. Vidrine was the manager of Canal at the time. 

b. The events began on September 5, 1996, with an initial accusatory

confrontation in Mr. Vidrine’s office, followed by a military-style raid on

the Canal Refining Company by numerous armed officers carrying what

appeared to be 9-mm handguns and M-16 rifles, and accompanied by

police dogs.

c. The raid was conducted by armed EPA-CID agents, together with armed

agents from the FBI, U.S. Marshals Service, U.S. Coast Guard, and

Louisiana State Police.  

d. During and after the raid, the government’s  the EPA-CID agents falsely

accused Mr. Vidrine of storing hazardous waste and lying about it; they

prevented female employees in Canal’s Marketing Department from using

rest rooms for several hours and from calling their homes and daycare
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centers to check on their children or make plans to have them picked up;

they and other agents yelled at Mr. Vidrine and the employees, falsely

telling them that Mr. Vidrine was poisoning them, killing them, and giving

them cancer; and they threatened them with imprisonment if they did not

provide damaging evidence against Mr. Vidrine and Canal.  

e. The government’s agents dumped files on the floor and desk in Mr.

Vidrine’s and other offices; and damaged the employees’ personal

belongings (including family pictures).

f. Thereafter, the government’s EPA-CID and FBI agents, while acting

within the scope of their employment, maliciously and without probable

cause recommended and urged the filing and prosecution of  federal felony

charges against Mr. Vidrine for alleged “storage of hazardous waste” in

violation of 42 U.S.C. 6928(d)(2).

7. Mr. Vidrine was arrested shortly after formal felony charges were filed against him on

December 14, 1999.  Mr. Vidrine was charged in the indictment with one count of

“knowingly stor[ing] hazardous waste  * * * at storage Tank 402 on the property of

‘Canal’. . . .” This criminal statute prescribes upon conviction “a fine of not more than

$50,000 for each day of violation, or imprisonment not to exceed * * * five years * * *

or both.”  

8. Ultimately, the charges against all defendants were dismissed on September 18, 2003. 

The case was dismissed because Mr. Vidrine was innocent of the charges, and the

Government never possessed evidence upon which Mr. Vidrine could have been

convicted, in that:

a. The alleged “hazardous waste” was actually only “used oil” which Canal

was purchasing as a feedstock for reprocessing in the refinery, and which

did not did not constitute hazardous waste under the applicable federal

regulations.  
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b. The government never possessed any tangible evidence that either Mr.

Vidrine or Canal Refining accepted any feedstock for the refinery that

constituted “hazardous waste” under the federal regulations.  

c. The government never had any other tangible evidence that the used oil

was a “hazardous substance.”  

d. The Government never had any tangible evidence showing that Mr.

Vidrine “knowingly” stored any hazardous substance. 

9. Notwithstanding the lack of evidence establishing guilt, the case was only dismissed after

the government’s law enforcement and investigative agents attempted, for almost four

years, to pressure Mr. Vidrine into pleading guilty to the unfounded charge.

10. Upon information and belief, Plaintiffs allege that the government agents’ only

“evidence” consisted of the uncorroborated, unsubstantiated, and fabricated statements

of an “informant” named Mike Franklin, who asserted that:

a. He had obtained samples of an alleged “transmix” (a mixture of products

that refineries often used as a minor supplement to their basic crude oil

feedstock.) that Trinity Marine intended to sell or had sold to Canal

Refining;

b. He “had it tested;” and 

c. The tests reflected a concentration of chlorinated solvents in the oil

making it a “hazardous waste” under the applicable regulations.

However, upon information and belief, neither the EPA nor the U. S. Department of

Justice ever possessed any such test results showing that Trinity, or any other supplier,

had ever supplied any transmix to Canal that contained an excessive proportion of

chlorinated solvents.  

11. Even though the United States government never obtained any actual hazardous waste

sample or test results substantiating the criminal charges that they filed – not from Mr.

Franklin; not from their own samplings; and not from any other source – it nevertheless

prosecuted Mr. Vidrine for years before dismissing those charges.
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12. While the witness/informant Franklin also claimed that he had reported to Mr. Vidrine

that the transmix feedstock from Trinity contained excessive chlorinated solvents, Mr.

Vidrine unequivocally denied ever receiving any such information, and there was never

any corroboration for Franklin’s bald allegation in that regard.

13. The indictment and subsequent prosecution of Mr. Vidrine was pursued while the United

States government’s investigative and law enforcement officers and those conspiring with

them knew, or should have known, that Mr. Vidrine had not committed the alleged crime.

14. Further, the Government continued its prosecution of Mr. Vidrine even after it became,

or should have become, clear to the United States government’s investigative and law

enforcement officers and those conspiring with them, that their purported witness, Mike

Franklin was a cocaine addict, that he was an untrustworthy and unreliable witness, that

is allegations were devoid of any reasonable indicia of reliability, and that the

Government had no tangible, physical evidence to corroborate his allegations against Mr.

Vidrine.

15. Before finally dismissing the case, the United States represented to the Court that they

had been “looking for” the alleged “Franklin-test-reports” for years, and had simply been

unable “to find” the alleged samples or test reports upon which they had based their

indictment, their continued prosecution of Mr. Vidrine, and their continuing efforts to

pressure Mr. Vidrine to end the matter by pleading guilty.  

16. Ultimately, the government agents proclaimed that they had been “unsuccessful”in

locating the purported test results – or the purported test laboratory that had allegedly

analyzed the “Franklin-samples,” even after “hypnotizing” Franklin “to refresh his

memory.”  

17. As the years passed, the agents and prosecutors remained steadfast in their refusal to

dismiss the case or to cease their malicious prosecution of Mr. Vidrine, opting instead to

continue their efforts to coerce Mr. Vidrine into a plea bargain that would result in the

loss of his reputation, in exchange for saving theirs.
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18. Ultimately, United States District Judge Tucker Melancon required  the United States to

either produce some evidence to support their charges of criminal activity, or dismiss the

case.

19. On September 17, 2003, on the eve of the trial – over seven years after the United States

conducted a military-style raid on Canal Refining Company; almost four years after

bringing felony criminal charges against Mr. Vidrine, forcing him to suffer the emotional

distress and humiliation of being charged with a felony and the fear of long term of

imprisonment, and forcing him to spend his entire retirement savings of over $180,000

to defend himself  – the United States finally filed a motion to dismiss the indictment

against all defendants. The following day, September 18, 2003, the district court granted

the motion.

III.

FIRST CLAIM – VIOLATION OF 28 U.S.C. §2680

1. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference herein all allegations set forth above. 

2. The acts and events set forth above constitute assault, battery, false imprisonment, false

arrest, abuse of process, and/or malicious prosecution under the laws of the State of

Louisiana. Because these acts and events were undertaken and caused by investigative

and law enforcement agents of the United States, the United States Government is liable

for all damages caused by such acts, as provided by 28 U.S.C. §2680(h).

IV.

DAMAGES

1. Plaintiffs have suffered the following injuries for which they seek full compensation

under the law:

a. Costs incurred in defending the criminal prosecution; 

b. Damages to reputation; and

c. Emotional distress, humiliation and loss of consortium,
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V.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs are entitled to damages from the United States, and they

do hereby pray that judgement be entered in their favor and against the United States government

as follows:

1. Costs of defending the criminal prosecution in the amount of $ 180,929.18; plus

2. Damage to their reputations in the amount of $1,000,000.00; plus

3. Emotional distress, humiliation and loss of consortium suffered by Hubert P. Vidrine in

the amount of $2,000,000.00; plus

4. Loss of consortium suffered by Tammy Joubert Vidrine in the amount of $2,000,000.00;

all in the total amount of $5,180,929.18

Plaintiffs further are entitled and do hereby seek recovery of all costs and attorneys fees

incurred by Plaintiffs in this civil action, together with for such further and additional relief at

law or in equity that this Court may deem appropriate or proper.

Respectfully submitted,

THE CORNWELL LAW FIRM
850 Park Street, Suite 101
Beaumont, Texas 77701
Telephone:  (409) 833-1889
Telecopier:  (409) 833-0711

By:  Gary Cornwell
Texas Bar No. 04837000

GOFORTH & LILLEY
A Professional Law Corporation

By: William H. Goforth
Bar Roll No. 1379
109 Stewart Street
Post Office Drawer 3563
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Lafayette, Louisiana  70502-3563
337-237-5777
Fax:  337-232-0786

Of Counsel:
Daniel J. Popeo 
Paul D. Kamenar 
WASHINGTON LEGAL FOUNDATION 
2009 Massachusetts Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 20036 
(202) 588-0302

Lawyers for Plaintiffs

 July 23, 2007


